TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD
ZONING HEARING BOARD
MINUTES - JANUARY 20, 2009

The reguI.ar meeting of the Zoning Hearing Board of the Township of Lower Makefield
was held in the Municipal Building on January 20, 2009. Chairman Malinowski called
the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.

Those present:

Zoning Hearing Board: David Malinowski, Chairman
Paul Bamburak, Vice Chairman
Gregory J. Smith, Secretary (joined meeting in progress)
Jerry Gruen, Member
Anthony Zamparelli, Member

Others: Robert Habgood, Code Enforcement Officer
John Donaghy, Township Solicitor
James Majewski, Township Engineer
Allen Toadvine, Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor
Matt Maloney, Supervisor Liaison

APPEAL #06-1372 — PETER ORLOFF AND JOY GRACE

Mr. Peter Orloff and Ms. Joy Grace were present. Mr. Majewski stated he still has not
heard from the Bucks County Conservation District on the status of the Plan that is being
prepared by the NRCS; and until they have a Plan in place, the Applicants cannot go
forward doing what they need to do on their property. Mr. Majewski stated he spoke to a
representative of the Conservation District in the middle of December, and they indicated
they were still waiting. He stated there has been a change of priorities, and unfortunately,
this property is lower on their list of priorities. Mr. Toadvine asked if there is anything
the Applicants can do, and Mr. Majewski stated there is not.

Ms. Grace stated she feels there should be a mentoring program that would help people as
they bought a property that is a repetitive loss of property because of the flooding, and
they did not know they had done this. She asked if the Township can help them file for
any kind of help. Mr. Maloney stated he feels it would be a good idea to try to get out
information about this, and he will discuss this with the Board of Supervisors and at least
add something on the Website about the sections of the Township that have this problem.

Ms. Grace stated all they are left with is to abandon the property which is what a
neighboring property owner did before she and Mr. Orloff purchased their property, but
they did know that neighbor had done that. She stated they will have to stop paying and
walk away as they cannot fix the problem or sell the property.



January 20, 2009 Zoning Hearing Board — page 2 of 7

Mr. Malinowski asked if these are Waters of the Commonwealth, and Mr. Majewski
stated it is Brock Creek and a good portion of the property is in the floodplain of Brock
Creek. He stated it has been studied so there are defined elevations along the creek that
show that good portion of their property is within the floodplain and the property is
subject to rules and regulations of the Commonwealth and Federal Government.

Ms. Grace stated she did contact Mr. Steil some time ago who came right out to the
property and did what he could. Mr. Maloney stated this is a FEMA floodplain and is not
something that the Legislature has discretion over and it is an Executive Branch issue so
that the State Representative would be of little help in this regard. He stated the
Township could make the FEMA maps more readily available on the Township Website,
but there is also an obligation on the part of any Realtor to make sure people are educated
on the property they are buying. Mr. Maloney stated while he cannot do anything to
remedy the situation these Applicants are in, the Township can try to make the education
process better for future buyers. Ms. Grace stated she feels there should be a pamphlet
presented to the residents as when she questioned the Township, she was only pointed to
a map.

The Applicant agreed to and requested a 90 day extension.

Mr. Bamburak moved, Mr. Zamparelli seconded and it was unanimously carried to grant
a 90 day extension to the second meeting which will be on April 21, 2009.

APPEAL #08-1500 — RICHARD AND JOAN KMIEC

Mr. Richard Kmiec was sworn in. The Application submitted was marked as Exhibit
A-1. Attached to the Application is a one-page Plan for Lot #3 Boxwood Farms dated
11/21/08 which was marked as Exhibit A-2.

Mr. Kmiec stated he is asking for a Variance of 14’ deeper into the lot from the present
building envelope. He stated they want to build a home that will have a master bedroom
on the first level as they are trying to build a home for their “old age.” He stated because
the property is on a cul-de-sac, the building envelope has a curvature, and there is not
enough depth in the building envelope to lay out the house the way they would like to
build it. He stated it would still be just under 52° from the property line in the rear if
approved.

Mr. Majewski asked what type of resource protection land is involved, and

Mr. Majewski stated it is woods. Mr. Kmiec stated there is a tree line across the property
which is one of the reasons they picked this property. It also backs up to a small
Township recreation area. He added that even with the additional 14, they will not
infringe on the tree line.



January 20, 2009 Zoning Hearing Board — page 3 of 7

N_Ir. Kmiec stated he needs to build this type of house for medical reasons as he was
diagnosed with a mild case of polio when he was two years old; and as a result today he
has post-polio syndrome, and it is becoming increasingly more difficult to climb steps.

He stated they are trying to make plans to build a house where they can stay on the first
floor.

Mr. Toadvine asked about the rear yard setback requirement, and Mr. Habgood stated it
has a 40 rear yard setback to the natural resource protection line. He stated the setbacks
were determined when it went through Planning for the entire development.

Mr. Toadvine stated in this case they have to measure from the resource protected lands
as opposed to the rear property line, and it is actually 51” from the rear property line.
Mr. Toadvine asked the setback from the resource protected lands to the house, and

Mr. Habgood stated on their Site Plans, they are showing an approximately 26’ setback
because of the “bump out.” Mr. Kmiec stated the “bump out” is a bow window in the
kitchen and does not touch the ground. This is where the breakfast area would be.

Mr. Gruen stated he indicated the hardship was that he needed a first floor bedroom, but
what is causing most of the problem is the bow window.

Mr. Toadvine asked about the front yard setback, and Mr. Habgood stated it is 40°.
He stated the setbacks were established when it went through Planning.

Mr. Bamburak asked if there was any thought given to making the house wider so that
the garage would be a “front-loader;” and rather than have that setback for the garage,
make the house more rectangular so that they could pull the back side of the house in and
move toward the right and still get the same net area. Mr. Kmiec stated they have been
working on this since March trying to come up with a floor plan that would meet their
needs, and they have tried many different options. He stated the middle where the
curvature is creates a problem as when you try to put the master bedroom on either side,
the middle reduces all the square footage inside and all the rooms became very small.
Mr. Bamburak stated it seems that they were trying to squeeze the house into the building
envelope which made rooms which were very narrow, and Mr. Kmiec agreed. He stated
he did not foresee this problem when he purchased the lot. Mr. Bamburak stated it does
appear that they did try to consider different options including moving the garage from
one side to the other as well.

Mr. Gruen asked the species of the trees in the rear and their size. Mr. Kmiec stated these
are older trees which he feels may be oaks or ashes. He stated there is also a lot of
underbrush mixed in. Mr. Gruen asked how close the trees will be to the house, and

Mr. Toadvine stated they indicated earlier it was approximately 25°. Mr. Kmiec stated he
feels this would be the distances from the branches and the trunks of the trees would be
further back than this. Mr. Gruen asked about the distance from the drip line, and



January 20, 2009 Zoning Hearing Board — page 4 of 7

Mr. Habgood stated according to the Plan from the rear of the bump out to the Resource
Protection line it would be 25.8’. From that same space to where the tree line begins
would be approximately 11°. Mr. Majewski stated this would be the drip line of the trees.
Mr. Majewski stated for setback purposes, they put in a Resource Protection line that was
a little bit further back from the drip line, and this is the 25.8;and this is approximately
where the trees start. Mr. Toadvine stated this was used for purposes of this
development, and Mr. Majewski agreed. Mr. Majewski stated the Plan does show the
limit of the Resource Protected area, and this is the 25.9°.

Mr. Gruen asked if the Applicant would be required under the Building Code to install
some kind of a barrier so that no heavy equipment would enter into the protected area
during construction if the Board approved the Variance. Mr. Habgood stated they
would have to show on the Site Plan a tree protection fence, and this would be reviewed
by the engineer to insure that it is in a location where the trees would not be impacted.

Mr. Toadvine asked how long ago the development was built, and Mr. Habgood stated it
is still in the process of being built. Mr. Majewski stated it was approved approximately
SIX years ago.

Mr. Gruen asked if the window is cantilevered or will there be footers underneath, and
Mr. Kmiec stated the footing would be the straight line that goes across, and the window
is in the air. Mr. Toadvine asked how far the bump out protrudes from the rest of the rear
of the property, and Mr. Habgood stated it is approximately 5.5’. Mr. Toadvine stated if
they did not include the bump out, they would be at approximately 31°.

Mr. Donaghy stated the Township would like to participate primarily to see if they can
reduce the rear yard encroachment because the trees that are in the back are part of an
overall park and could also impact other properties the area. He stated they want to see
any encroachment into that setback as limited as possible. He asked Mr. Kmiec if he was
in agreement that he would remove the bow window, and Mr. Kmiec stated he did not
agree to this. Mr. Donaghy stated he understands the other issues related to having
access to the rooms, but the bow window is a design feature. He stated if the Board gives
an approval for a Variance for a certain number of feet, unless they limit it to the
window, it would be available for any rear portion of the house. Mr. Toadvine stated the
Board could limit it to the Plan as submitted.

Mr. Donaghy asked Mr. Kmiec if he tried to move the house further forward, and it was
noted he could not because of the front yard setback. Mr. Toadvine stated they could
move it .7 feet closer to the street. Mr. Kmiec stated if they could re-position the building
envelope anywhere on the property, he would be in agreement with this if this was
acceptable to the Zoning Hearing Board. Mr. Toadvine asked if there are neighbors on
either side of his property, and Mr. Kmiec stated currently there are only empty lots on












